
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee Meeting 
Monday, February 12, 2018 

Table of Contents 

Contents 

Agenda .................................................................................................................................... 2 

Meeting Minutes .................................................................................................................... 4 

Study Timeline ...................................................................................................................... 15 

January 12, 2018 DNR letter to Subcommittee .................................................................... 17 

State Vehicles - State Fleet Management Policies................................................................ 27 

State Vehicles - DNR Directives and Policies ........................................................................ 43 

DNR Board Directive 202.  Equipment Use and Care .................................................................................. 44 
Law Enforcement Directive 301.  Law Enforcement Collision Review ........................................................ 50 
Daily and Monthly Vehicle Log ...................................................................................................................... 57 

In-Service Training and Firearms - DNR Directives and Policies ........................................... 61 

DNR Board Policy 300.01.  Deputy Law Enforcement Officer Policy .......................................................... 62 
Committee recommendation from Study of the Law Enforcement Training Council and Criminal Justice 
Academy regarding tracking firearm certification ....................................................................................... 72 

Discipline and Internal Affairs - DNR Directives and Policies ................................................ 74 

New Complaint Procedure (Board Policy 2016.01) ..................................................................................... 75 
Internal Affairs (Law Enforcement Directive 321) ........................................................................................ 80 
Standards of Disciplinary Actions (Human Resources Policy 701.03) ......................................................... 85 

Hiring, Promotions, and Bonuses - DNR Directives and Policies .......................................... 96 

Law Enforcement Officer Hiring Procedure (LE Directive 347) ................................................................... 97 
Law Enforcement Officer Promotional Plan (LE Directive 348).................................................................102 
Applicant Evaluation Form ...........................................................................................................................105 

Committee Contact Information ........................................................................................107 

Page 1 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



AGENDA 

Page 2 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



South Carolina 
House of Representatives  

 

 
 

Legislative Oversight Committee 
 
 
 

LAW ENFORCEMENT AND CRIMINAL JUSTICE SUBCOMMITTEE 
Chairman Edward R. Tallon Sr. 

The Honorable Katherine E. (Katie) Arrington 
The Honorable William M. (Bill) Hixon 
The Honorable Jeffrey E. (Jeff) Johnson 

 
Monday, February 12, 2018  

2:00pm 
Room 108 - Blatt Building 

Pursuant to Committee Rule 6.8, S.C. ETV shall be allowed access for internet 
streaming whenever technologically feasible. 

 
AGENDA  

 
I. Approval of Meeting Minutes 

 
II. Discussion of the study of the Department of Natural Resources 

 
III. Adjournment 

 
 
 

Page 3 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



MEETING MINUTES 
 

Page 4 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



  Chair Wm. Weston J. Newton  
First Vice-Chair: 
Laurie Slade Funderburk    

Legislative Oversight Committee 
Katherine E. “Katie” Arrington 
Gary E. Clary 
Chandra E. Dillard 
MaryGail K. Douglas 
Phyllis J. Henderson 
Joseph H. Jefferson Jr. 
Robert L. Ridgeway, III 
Tommy M. Stringer 
Bill Taylor 

Bruce W. Bannister 
William K. “Bill” Bowers 
Neal Collins 
Raye Felder 
William M. “Bill” Hixon 
Jeffrey E. “Jeff” Johnson 
Mandy Powers Norrell 
Edward R. Tallon Sr. 
Robert Q. Williams 

South Carolina House of Representatives 
Jennifer L. Dobson 
Research Director 
 

 
Post Office Box 11867 

Columbia, South Carolina 29211 

Telephone: (803) 212-6810 • Fax: (803) 212-6811 
 

Room 228 Blatt Building

Charles L. Appleby IV 
Legal Counsel 

Cathy A. Greer 
Administration Coordinator 

Carmen J. McCutcheon Simon 
Research Analyst/Auditor 
 

  Kendra H. Wilkerson 
Fiscal/Research Analyst 

    
 

 

Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

Thursday, November 30, 2017 
10:00 am 

Blatt Room 110 
 
 
Archived Video Available 

I. Pursuant to House Legislative Oversight Committee Rule 6.8, South Carolina 
ETV was allowed access for streaming the meeting. You may access an 
archived video of this meeting by visiting the South Carolina General 
Assembly’s website (http://www.scstatehouse.gov) and clicking on 
Committee Postings and Reports, then under House Standing Committees click on 
Legislative Oversight. Then, click on Video Archives for a listing of archived 
videos for the Committee. 
 

Attendance 

I. The Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee meeting was 
called to order by Chairman Edward R. Tallon, Sr., on  Thursday, November 
30, 2017, in Room 110 of the Blatt Building. The following members of the 
Subcommittee were present for either all or a portion of the meeting: 
Chairman Tallon, Representative Katherine E. Arrington, and Representative 
William M. Hixon. 



Minutes 
I. House Rule 4.5 requires standing committees to prepare and make available 

to the public the minutes of committee meetings, but the minutes do not 
have to be verbatim accounts of meetings. It is the practice of the Legislative 
Oversight Committee to provide minutes for its subcommittee meetings. 

II. Representative Arrington makes a motion to approve the meeting minutes 
from the two prior Subcommittee meetings.  

Rep. Arrington’s motion to approve 
the minutes from the October 23, 
2017, and November 6, 2017, meeting: 

Yea Nay Not Voting 

Rep. Arrington    

Rep. Hixon     

Rep. Johnson    Not Present 

Rep. Tallon    

Discussion of the Department of Natural Resources 

I. Chairman Tallon explains the purpose of the meeting today is to receive 
constituent testimony; discuss remaining agency law recommendations; and 
allow the agency to present and subcommittee members to ask about, 
information the agency provided in response to Subcommittee follow-up 
letters from each previous meeting during the study. 
 

II. He reminds those who were sworn in during prior meetings that they remain 
under oath anytime they are with the Subcommittee or Committee.  Also, he 
swears in the following individuals: 
 

a. Mr. Mike Caston, Spartanburg; 
b. Mr. Clay Duffie, Charleston; 
c. Mr. Rick Caldwell, II, Legislative Affairs, Department of Health and 

Environmental Control (DHEC); and 
d. Mr. David Baize, Water Resource Policy Advisor, DHEC. 

 
III. Testimony about the state water plan is provided by representatives of DNR, 

representatives of DHEC, Mr. Caston, and Mr. Duffie. 

IV. Ms. Shannon Bobertz, General Counsel for DNR, presents information on 
law recommendations.  There is testimony from DNR representatives and 
questions from members, which the DNR representatives answer, about 
various law recommendations. 

V. Chairman Tallon explains the agency has provided information responsive to 
the Subcommittee’s follow-up questions related to the following topics: 

a. Human Resources; 

Page 6 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



 

b. Office of Media and Outreach; 
c. Office of Support Services; 
d. Marine Resources Division; 
e. Land, Water, and Conservation Division; 
f. Wildlife and Freshwater Fisheries Division; 
g. Office of Environmental Programs; and 
h. Law Enforcement Division 

 

Chairman Tallon asks if members have any additional questions or motions 
related to the information or divisions.  Members ask questions about each 
division and topic, which applicable DNR personnel answer. 

VI. Throughout the meeting, members make motions which are listed below. 

Rep. Hixon’s motion that the Subcommittee Study 
include a recommendation that the agency continue in 
its expansion of the technical advisory committee for the 
state water plan and the process of making it more 
stakeholder driven and in six months come back and 
testify to the House Legislative Oversight Committee on 
the progress made. 

Yea Nay Not Voting 

Rep. Arrington    

Rep. Hixon     

Rep. Johnson    Not Present 

Rep. Tallon    

 

Rep. Hixon’s motion that based on the overwhelming 
number of vacancies on the Drought Response 
Committee, the Subcommittee Study include a 
recommendation that SC Code 49-23-60 be updated to 
provide a preference to individuals seeking to participate 
in the Committee who are from a county that does not 
already have two members on the local committee, but 
remove the limitation that there may not be more than 
two members on a local committee from each county 
within the drought management area to increase the 
number of people available for the Governor to appoint. 

Yea Nay Not Voting 

Rep. Arrington    

Rep. Hixon     

Rep. Johnson    Not Present 

Rep. Tallon    

 

Page 7 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



 

Rep. Arrington’s motion that the Subcommittee Study 
approve each of the agency recommended changes to law 
as revised today, or, if not revised, as they appear in the 
agency’s Program Evaluation Report which are 
numbered 2-5, 12, 17-20, 22, 24, 27, 30, 36, 38, 41, 50-51, 
57, 59, 63, 74, 79, and 83 (The PER is available online for 
the public to view). 

Yea Nay Not Voting 

Rep. Arrington    

Rep. Hixon     

Rep. Johnson    Not Present 

Rep. Tallon    

 

Rep. Hixon’s motion that the Subcommittee Study 
include the agency’s law recommendation #45, which 
relates to ending the potentially duplicative Saltwater 
Recreational Fisheries Advisory Committee, for 
informational purposes only, and the Subcommittee 
notify the House Agriculture Committee of the agency’s 
recommendation, and provide it with information the 
House Legislative Oversight Committee has obtained 
about the recommendation, so the Agriculture 
Committee may further analyze the recommendation.  

Yea Nay Not Voting 

Rep. Arrington    

Rep. Hixon     

Rep. Johnson    Not Present 

Rep. Tallon    

 

Rep. Hixon’s motion that the Subcommittee Study 
approve each of the agency recommended changes to law 
as they appear in the agency’s Program Evaluation 
Report which are numbered 6-8, 29, 37, 39-40, 46-49, 52-
56, 58, 60, 64-66, 69, 71, 75-76, 78, 84, 86, and 87 (The 
PER is available online for the public to view). 

Yea Nay Not Voting 

Rep. Arrington    

Rep. Hixon     

Rep. Johnson    Not Present 

Rep. Tallon    

  

Page 8 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



 

Rep. Hixon’s motion that the Subcommittee Study 
include the agency’s law recommendation #82, which 
relates to eliminating the planned five year acquisition 
notification, for informational purposes only, and the 
Subcommittee notify the House Ways and Means 
Committee of the agency’s recommendation, and provide 
it with information the House Legislative Oversight 
Committee has obtained about the recommendation, so 
the Ways and Means Committee may further analyze 
the recommendation since it is the committee that 
receives the acquisition notification.  

Yea Nay Not Voting 

Rep. Arrington    

Rep. Hixon     

Rep. Johnson    Not Present 

Rep. Tallon    

 

Rep. Arrington’s motion that the Subcommittee Study 
include  
(1) a recommendation that the State Division of Human 
Resources research the cost of adding an employee 
climate survey score, every two years, as part of the 
Employee Performance Management System results of 
individuals, at every agency, who are in charge of an 
agency’s division, as well as an overall score as part of the 
results of the agency head; and 
(2) a recommendation that when the agency receives the 
results of the most recent employee morale survey, the 
agency provide the Committee the results along with a 
synopsis of the issues identified in the survey, if any, and 
the agency’s timeline for addressing those issues.   

Yea Nay Not Voting 

Rep. Arrington    

Rep. Hixon     

Rep. Johnson    Not Present 

Rep. Tallon    

  

Page 9 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



 

Rep. Arrington’s motion that the Subcommittee Study 
recommendation related to the internal auditor that was 
approved during the October 9, 2017, Subcommittee 
meeting be amended to state this Subcommittee 
recommends the agency hire an internal auditor to serve 
under the Audit Manager, subject to funding from the 
General Assembly. 

Yea Nay Not Voting 

Rep. Arrington    

Rep. Hixon     

Rep. Johnson    Not Present 

Rep. Tallon    

 

Rep. Arrington’s motion that the Subcommittee Study 
recommendation related to the audit team direct report 
to the DNR Board that was approved during the October 
9, 2017, Subcommittee meeting be amended to state this 
Subcommittee recommends the head of the agency’s 
audit team (1) provide an annual audit plan for approval 
by the agency board; (2) have the ability to make 
requests for additional audits directly to the Board, 
without the need of approval from the agency director; 
and (3) discuss the status and results of any audits 
directly with the Board, without the need to initially 
discuss the information with the agency director. 

Yea Nay Not Voting 

Rep. Arrington    

Rep. Hixon     

Rep. Johnson    Not Present 

Rep. Tallon    

 

Rep. Arrington’s motion that the Subcommittee Study 
include a recommendation that the agency create and 
publish on its website a current list of all natural 
resource related licenses, permits, and fees, along with 
the following information related to each:  amount to 
purchase, statute or regulation in which the amount is 
set, year the amount was last changed, number 
purchased, and a brief explanation of how the agency 
utilizes the funds. 

Yea Nay Not Voting 

Rep. Arrington    

Rep. Hixon     

Rep. Johnson    Not Present 

Rep. Tallon    

Page 10 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



 

 

Rep. Hixon’s motion that the Subcommittee Study 
recommendation related to turkey tags that was 
approved during the October 9, 2017, Subcommittee 
meeting be amended to state this Subcommittee 
recommends the agency review turkey tags in an effort 
to obtain a process that will allow the state to avoid 
incurring costs for printing and mailing tags. 

Yea Nay Not Voting 

Rep. Arrington    

Rep. Hixon     

Rep. Johnson    Not Present 

Rep. Tallon    

 

Rep. Arrington’s motion that the Subcommittee Study 
include a recommendation that the agency research the 
costs and feasibility of making it easier for individuals to 
renew their licenses from year to year (e.g., adding a one 
button auto-fill option for online hunting license 
renewals that automatically fills in the licenses 
requested by the individual the previous year).  

Yea Nay Not Voting 

Rep. Arrington    

Rep. Hixon     

Rep. Johnson    Not Present 

Rep. Tallon    

 

Rep. Arrington’s motion that the Subcommittee Study 
include a recommendation that the agency include 
information online regarding the percentage of 
individuals who received a permit through each of the 
lottery hunts so members of the public applying for the 
permits are aware of their chances and have information 
on the point system. 

Yea Nay Not Voting 

Rep. Arrington    

Rep. Hixon     

Rep. Johnson    Not Present 

Rep. Tallon    

  

Page 11 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



 

Rep. Arrington’s motion that the Subcommittee Study 
recommendation related to procurement training that 
was approved during the October 9, 2017, Subcommittee 
meeting be amended to clarify the type of purchases to 
which it applies.  The amended recommendation is that 
state agencies be prohibited from procuring products or 
services over $2,500 annually until all agency employees 
involved in procurement of products or services over 
$2,500 successfully complete the annual curriculum of 
training approved by the state’s Division Director of 
Procurement Services subject to reasonable extensions 
(e.g., insufficient space available in approved classes, 
etc.).   

Yea Nay Not Voting 

Rep. Arrington    

Rep. Hixon     

Rep. Johnson    Not Present 

Rep. Tallon    

 

Rep. Hixon’s motion that the Subcommittee Study 
include a recommendation that state statute be revised 
to include a fee for permits related to the harvesting of 
horseshoe crabs for biomedical purposes and the House 
Agriculture Committee further analyze the issue to 
determine what may be a reasonable fee.  

Yea Nay Not Voting 

Rep. Arrington    

Rep. Hixon     

Rep. Johnson    Not Present 

Rep. Tallon    

 

Rep. Hixon’s motion that the Subcommittee Study 
include a recommendation that DNR’s dike repair and 
maintenance be exempt from capital project 
requirements.  

Yea Nay Not Voting 

Rep. Arrington    

Rep. Hixon     

Rep. Johnson    Not Present 

Rep. Tallon    

  

Page 12 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



 

Rep. Hixon’s motion that the Subcommittee Study 
include a finding that current South Carolina practices 
regarding migratory bird permits, may detrimentally 
impact the Federal Harvest Information program for 
migratory birds, which utilizes the number of permits 
issued across states as part of the information it collects 
for scientific purposes.  Some other states are addressing 
this potential detrimental impact by charging a nominal 
fee to encourage requests for permits from only those 
individuals who intend to use the permit.  

Yea Nay Not Voting 

Rep. Arrington    

Rep. Hixon     

Rep. Johnson    Not Present 

Rep. Tallon    

 

Rep. Hixon’s motion that the Subcommittee Study 
include a recommendation that the that the Law 
Enforcement Training Council, of which the agency 
director is a member, produce a brief report, sent to the 
General Assembly and statewide media outlets, which 
lists law enforcement entities across the state in the 
following areas for the previous year, and provides this 
data for the past three years: (1) percentage of graduates 
from Criminal Justice Academy basic training; (2) 
number of advanced hours of training; (3) percentage of 
law enforcement officers leaving the entity; (4) 
percentage of new officers that transferred from another 
SC law enforcement entity; (5) retention rate for past 
five years; and (6) retention rate for past ten years.  

Yea Nay Not Voting 

Rep. Arrington    

Rep. Hixon     

Rep. Johnson    Not Present 

Rep. Tallon    

 

Rep. Hixon’s motion that the Subcommittee Study 
include a recommendation that the agency research and 
create a policy for handling complaints against Deputy 
Directors and the agency Director.  

Yea Nay Not Voting 

Rep. Arrington    

Rep. Hixon     

Rep. Johnson    Not Present 

Rep. Tallon    

Page 13 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



 

 

Rep. Hixon’s motion that the Subcommittee Study 
include a finding that because (1) the safety of 
individuals on the water is paramount; (2) there are at 
least nine other southeastern states, including those 
immediately surrounding South Carolina, which have a 
mandatory boater safety course requirement, (3) DNR 
has learned through numerous public meetings that 
South Carolina boaters support a boater safety education 
requirement; and (4) the number of boats owned in 
South Carolina has risen, the Subcommittee request the 
House Agriculture Committee’s Wildlife Subcommittee 
further analyze the issue.  

Yea Nay Not Voting 

Rep. Arrington    

Rep. Hixon     

Rep. Johnson    Not Present 

Rep. Tallon    

 

VII. Subcommittee members note some best practices observed during the study 
of the agency. 

VIII. Mr. Pulliam, DNR Board Chairman, and DNR Director Taylor, testify about 
the oversight process and work of agency employees. 

IX. Chairman Tallon directs staff to draft the Subcommittee Study Report, and 
provide a copy to all subcommittee members by Friday, December 8, 2017.  
He further explains subcommittee members have until 5:00pm on Friday, 
December 15, 2017, to provide a written statement for inclusion in the report, 
as permitted by Standard Practice 12.4.  In addition, he states he will provide 
notice to the full Committee that the Subcommittee Study is available for 
consideration, unless he receives a written request for another meeting from 
a Subcommittee Member prior to 5:00pm on Friday, December 15, 2017. 

X. There being no further business, the meeting is adjourned. 

 

Page 14 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



STUDY TIMELINE 
 
 
 

Page 15 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Study Update - Department of Natural Resources

•March 11, 2015 - Agency submits its Annual Restructuring and Seven-Year Plan Report, which is available online.

•January 8, 2016 - Agency submits its Annual Restructuring Report, which is available online.

•September 2016 - Agency submits its 2015-16 Accountability Report/2017 Annual Restructuring Report.

•May 10, 2017 - Full committee votes to make the agency the next agency for the Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee to study.  Video of the meeting is 
available online.

•May 19, 2017 - Agency receives notice that it has been selected for study.

•June 27 - July 28, 2017 - Committee solicits input from the public about the agency in the form of an online public survey.  The results of the public survey are available online.  

•August 30, 2017 - Agency submits its Program Evaluation Report, which is available online. 

•September 25, 2017 - Subcommittee meets with agency (Meeting #1) to discuss the agency's history; legal directives; mission and vision; general information about employees; 
and agency organization. 

•October 4, 2017 - Subcommittee meets with agency (Meeting #2) to discuss the agency's Office of Media and Outreach; Office of Support Services; and recommendations relating 
to the agency as a whole. 

•October 9, 2017 - Subcommittee meets with agency (Meeting #3) to discuss the agency's Marine Resource Division and tour the agency's Marine Resource Divisions office in Fort 
Johnson, Charleston.

•October 16, 2017 - Full Committee meets with agency (Meeting #4) to receive public input.

•October 17, 2017 - Subcommittee meets with agency (Meeting #5) to discuss the agency's Land, Water, and Conservation Division.

•October 23, 2017 - Subcommittee meets with agency (Meeting #6) to discuss the agency's Wildlife and Freshwater Fisheries Division.

•November 6, 2017 - Subcommittee meets with agency (Meeting #7) to discuss the agency's Office of Environmental Programs/Boating Access and Engineering Section; and the 
agency's Law Enforcement Division.

•November 30, 2017 - Subcommittee meets with agency (Meeting #8) to discuss materials received from the agency in response to Subcommittee letters; follow-up questions 
about agency divisions; and provide entities potentially impacted by the agency's law recommendations an opportunity to testify.

•February 12, 2018 - (TODAY) Subcommittee meets with agency (Meeting #9) to discuss public input and agency information received after the Subcommittee's November 30, 2017 
meeting.

•Ongoing - Public may submit written comments on the Oversight Committee's webpage on the General Assembly's website (www.scstatehouse.gov) Page 16 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



 

 
 

JANUARY 12, 2018 DNR LETTER TO SUBCOMMITTEE 
 

The Department of Natural Resources provides responses to the Oversight Subcommittee's 
December 20, 2017 letter which requested information about the following topics:  (1) firearms; 
(2) residency; (3) state vehicles; (4) discipline; (5) internal affairs; (6) hiring and promotions; and 
(7) lawsuits.  This does not include the appendices to the DNR letter.   

Page 17 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



South Carolina Department of 

Natural Resources
 
DNR 

Alvin A. Taylor 
Director 

January 12,2018 

VIA HAND DELIVERY 
The Honorable Edward R. Tallon Sr., Chairman 
Legislative Oversight Committee Subcommittee 
418 Blatt Building 
Post Office Box 11867 
Columbia, SC 29201 

Re:	 Subcommittee's December 20,2017 letter requesting additional information from the SC 
Department of Natural Resources. 

Dear Chairman Tallon: 

In response to your letter dated December 20 , 20 I7, the SC Department of Natural 
Resources has compiled the additional information sought by the committee as part of the 
oversight process of our agency. Answers are compiled in the body of this letter. 

If additional information is needed, please let me know. 

Firearms 
1. Please provide a copy of any agency policies, procedures, or forms that relate to firearm 
training and/or firearm qualification. 

See attached SCD NR Law Enforcement Directive 317, SCDNR Board Policy 300.01, 
SCDNR Board Policy 301 .01, SCDNR Board Directive 301 and Request for Approval of Off
Duty or Back-Up Weapon form. 

2. Please provide a list of the individuals at the agency who were certified firearms
 
instructors, and the dates during which they were certified, during fiscal years 2007
 
through 2017.
 

Below are the current and retired/separated firearms instructors during the requested 
period as determined through the SCCJA Acadis System. Due to the change from LETS to 
Acadis some of the information was requested from SCCJA Certification section and is not 
based on records kept by the Department. 

Rembert C. Dennis Building • 1000 Assembly St • P.O. Box 167 • Columbia, S.C. 29202 • Telephone: 803/734-4007 

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AGENCY www.dnr.sc.gov PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER 0 Page 18 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



The Honorable Edward R. Tallon Sr., Chairman 
Legislative Oversight Committee Subcommittee 
January 12, 2018 
Page 2 of9 

Current Officers Firearms Instructor Initial Certification Dates 

Bedingfield, John 9/1/00 

Bickley, Rhett S. Jr. 2/22/07 

Byers, Benjamin S. 2/18/10 

Cline, Wade S. 9/22/15 

Cooper, Jeremy T. 3/18/05 

Corbett, Brian M. 12/07/07 

Douglas, Jordan R. 4/20/17 

Dudley, John T. 7/12/96 

Ellis , Lee E. 6/11 /99 

Kelley, Thomas W. 2/15/02 

Lewis, Ray P. 4/22/1 0 

Martin, Erik M. 5/2/11 

McClellan , Henry H. 2/3/14 

McCullough, Robert C . 5/31/85 

Monnet, Russell T . 8/29/03 

Owen, Matthew G. 2/18/10 

Pardue, John K. 9/3/09 

Perry, John A. 2/14/08 

Riley, Dentis J . 11/03 /05 

Salter, Raquel 3/23/01 

Spires, Tony L. 10/19/07 

Swink, Karen D. 12/19/03 

Thomas, Benjamin IV 1/24/03 

Thomas, Michael P. 10/03/08 

Thompson, Andre O . 4/27/01 

Wilson, Gary M Sr. 9/27/07 

Expired 12/8/09 

Expires 7/29/19 

Expires 7/29/19 

Expires 9/29/20 

Expires 5/22/18 

Expires 8/19 /19 

Expires 4/20/20 

Expires 6/1 0/19 

Expires 5/1/18 

Expires 2/5/19 

Expired 11/14/17 

Expires 2/5/19 

Expires 2/24 /20 

Expired 5/21/17 

Expires 9/29/20 

Expires 7/1/19 

Expires 6/12/18 

Expired 2/14/1 1 

Expires 3/18/19 

Expires 2/5/19 

Expires 9/29/20 

Expired 9/14/15 

Expired 5/2/11 

Expires 2/6/18 

Expires 7/29 /19 

Expires 9/30/19 

* No longer active instructor 

* Pending recert date SCCJA 

* Pending recert date SCCJA 

* No longer active instructor 

* No longer active instructor 

* No longer active instructor 

Page 19 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



The Honorable Edward R. Tallon Sr., Chairman 
Legislative Oversight Committee Sub committee 
January 12, 2018 
Page30f9 

Retired and Separated DNR Officers Current Agency 

Ard , Joe J,-Initial 7/12/96; Expired 6/26/12 N/A 

Beach am , Johnnie C.-Initial 2/18 /00 ; Expires 8/21 /18 * DHEC LE 

Bobb , Donni e L.- Initial 12/20/85 ; Exp ired 9/8/2009 N/A 

Bogan Marsh all S.- Initial 10/22/04 ; Inactiv e 5/2/11 N/A 

Camp, Steve L.- Initial 1/24 /2003; Expired 3/5/13 N/A 

Combs, Edwin L, Jr.-Initial 5/3/91; Expired 12/12 /11 N/A 

Eidso n, Albert L.-In itial 9/3/09; Expires 7/3/18 N/A 

Hernd on , Henry H,-Initial 12/13 /02 ; Expired 7/24/12 N/A 

Kearse, Horace L. III-Init ial 4/30/04 ; Inactive 8/3 1/10 N/A 

Keeter, Adam H,-Initial 9/2 1/17; Expires 9/21/20 * SLED 

Morris, Harold E,- Initial 8/27 /99 ; Expires 3/20/ 18 * Clarend on County SO 

O ' Quinn , Jame s J, Jr.-In itial 8/18 /89 ; Expired 4/7/09 N/A 

Owens, Benjamin R ,-Init ial 12/13/02 ; Expired 2/8/16 N/A 

Pruitt , Mauric e C,- Initia l 7/19/90; Inactive 6/1/10 N/A 

Sn ider, Gregory R,-Initial 8/19 /94 ; Expired 9/17/13 N/A 

Residency 
3. Please provide a copy of any agency policies, procedures, or forms that relate to where 
law enforcement officers at the agency must reside. 

See attached S.c. Code Ann. 50-3-316, SCDNR Human Resource Polic y 700,07, SCDNR 
Law Enforcement Directi ve 345 , and SCDNR Law Enfo rcement Directive 347, 

State Vehicles 
4. Please provide a copy of any policies, procedures, or forms applicable to agency 
personnel that relate to use of state vehicles (e.g., automobile, boat, four wheeler, etc.), 
including, but not limited to, taking state vehicles out of state. 

See attached SCDNR Law Enforcement Directi ves 301 , 304 , 327 , 33 1, 337, 344 , SCDNR 
Board Poli cy 302.01 , SCDNR Board Directives 201,202,903, SCDNR HR Policy 700 ,04, 
SCDNR Vehicle Management Handbook, SCDNR Out of State Travel Request, SCDNR In
Stat e Overnight Travel Request, SCDNR Monthly Motor Vehicle Log , SCDNR Operator Report 
of Accident/Incident Package , SC DNR Computation for Reimbursement of Co mmuting 
Mileage , SCDNR Permanent Assignment of a State-Owned Vehicle, and SCDNR Law 

Page 20 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



The Honorable Edward R. Tallon Sr., Chairman 
Legislative Oversight Committee Subcommittee 
January 12,2018 
Page 4 of9 
Enforcement Vehicle Collision forms. This does not include policies or forms produced outside 
the agency that may apply to all state agencies. 

S. During fiscal years 2007 through 2017, how many disciplinary actions resulted from 
violation of any of the policies provided in response to question four? 

During fiscal years 2007 through 2017, nine (9) disciplinary actions have been issued by 
written reprimand or above resulting from violations of policies listed in question #4 which have 
been documented by SCDNR Human Resources. The records are to the best of our knowledge. 
The records do not include oral reprimands or counseling sessions. 

6. Please provide a copy of any policies, procedures, or forms applicable to agency 
personnel that relate to transportation of non-sworn civilians in state vehicles (e.g., 
automobile, boat, four wheeler, etc.), outside of transportation for criminal or medical 
purposes. 

See answer to #4. 

Discipline 
7. Please provide a copy of any agency policies, procedures, or forms that relate to 
discipline of agency employees. 

See attached SCDNR Human Resources Policy 701.03 and Forms - Oral Reprimand, 
Written Reprimand, Notice of Suspension, Notice of Suspension Temporary Grant or Time
Limited Employees, and Notice of Suspension Pending Investigation. 

This is the overarching policy to discipline an employee. However, all DNR policies could 
be violated which could result in discipline. 

Internal Affairs 
8. Please provide a list of the individuals that served as agency Internal Affairs Officers,
 
and the dates during which each served in this role, during fiscal years 2007 through
 
2017.
 

Major Gary Sullivan has served in this role since 2007. 

Page 21 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



The Honorable Edward R. Tallon Sr., Chairman 
Legislative Oversight Committee Subcommittee 
January 12,2018 
Page 5 of9 
Hiring and Promotions 
9. Please provide the names of all individuals in the Law Enforcement Division that
 
served as Captain, Major, or Colonel, including the dates during which each served in
 
the applicable role and regions or areas for which they were responsible, during fiscal
 
years 2007 to 2017.
 

To the best of our knowledge, the department provides Exhibit A to respond to the
 
question.
 

10. Please explain how the geographical location of each of the Law Enforcement
 
Division regions has changed, if any, during fiscal years 2007 to 2017.
 

The geographical location of the Law Enforcement Division regions have not changed
 
during fiscal years 2007 to 2017.
 

11. Please provide the names of all individuals that work for the agency as attorneys, 
excluding those hired via contract, and the dates during which each served, during fiscal 
years 2007 to 2017. 

Names and dates of agency attorneys for fiscal years 2007-2017 are, provided in
 
alphabetical order, below:
 

Shannon Bobertz 7/2/2013 - current
 
Victor Craig Jones 10/2/2013 - current
 
Paul League 8/28/1981 - 2/10/20 15
 
Buford Mabry 7/2/1985 - 12/14/2007, Rehired 12/17/2007 - 12/31/2013
 
James Quinn 8/17/1985 - 3/1/2010
 
Robert Stephenson 1/17/2008 -12/31/2012
 
Van Whitehead 5/4/2015 - current
 

12. Please provide the number of law enforcement officers who left the agency each fiscal 
year from 2007 to 2017. 

I FY06/07 11 

I FY07/08 13 
, FY08/09 20 

FY09/10 24 

FY10/11 10 

FYll/12 7 

FY12/13 16 

FY13/14 4 

FY14/15 10 

FY15/16 11 

FY16/17 14 

Page 22 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



The Honorable Edward R. Tallon Sr. , Chairman 
Legislative Oversight Committee Subcommittee 
January 12, 2018 
Page 6 of9 

Below is a graph which explains the data above. The solid line (or trend line) 
shows that officers who left DNR since fisca l ear 200 7 has been decreasing. 

Law Enforcement Officers Who Left DNR 

30 

25 _,,24 
20 , '20 \ 

~ \ 

15 ~ \ " 16 
., 13 ' « \ 

10 ... n" \, \ 
...~o_ ,: , " '''1& 

..... .., 7 ,,,"
 
5
 'i'4 

o 

Lawsuits 
13. Please provide a list of all lawsuits pending against the agency, or which were settled 
prior to litigation, excluding administrative law court cases, during fiscal years 2007 
through 2017, including the date the lawsuit was filed, causes of action alleged, and date 
the lawsuit concluded. 

DAT E FILED* CAUSES OF DATE 
ACTION CONCLUDED* 

ALLEGED* 

1 

2 

8/30/2007 

12/17/20 08 

Invasion of Privacy , 
1983 Claim, Outrage, 
Trespass, Nuisance, 
Negligent Supervisi on , 
Abuse of Process, Civil 
Constitutional 

I
Neglige nce 

Neg ligence 

11/20/09 

6/17/20 10 

3 
4/22/2009 

Wrongful Death 6/18/2009 

4 
2/12 /20 10 

Wrongful Death , 
Survival Act ion, Gross 

3/22/20 13 

Negligence 
I I 

Page 23 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



The Honorable Edward R. Tallon Sr., Chairman 
Legislative Oversight Committee Subcommittee 
January 12,2018 
Page 7 0 f9 

5 

6 

9/20 /2010 

6/17/2011 

Declaratory 
Judgement, Injunctive 
Reli ef (Anadromous 
Fish) 

Abuse of Process, 
Malicious Prosecution, 
Gross Negligence, 
False Imprisonment 

I 

5/14/2012 

5/13/2013 

7 

10/31/2011 

Violation of ADA, 
Breach of Contract, 
Violation of Civil 
Rights Gender Title 
VII 

11/1/2013 

8 
8/8/2012 

False Imprisonment, 
Outrage, Assault 

4/1/2014 

9 

1/14/2013 

Failure to Train and 
Supervise, False 
Arrest, Malicious 
Prosecution, 
Negligence, Gross 
Negligence, Violation 
of S.c. Article 1 Sec. 
10 

12/20/2013 

10 

11 

12 
I 

4/5/2013 

12/20/2013 

12/19/2013 

Claim & Delivery, 
Quantum Meruit, 
Conversion and 
Trespass to Chattels, 
Declaratory Judgement 

Declaratory Judgement 
(stream navigability) 

Strict Liability, Product 
Liability, Breach of 
Warranty, Gross 
Negligence, Loss of 
Consortium (Premises 
Liability) 

I 

10/23/2014 

7/18 /2016 

1/26/2015 

13 

I 

1/17/2014 Negligence(MVA) 
12/31/2015 

Page 24 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



The Honorable Edward R. Tallon Sr., Chairman 
Legislative Oversight Committee Subcommittee 
January 12, 2018 
Page 8 0 f9 

14 Violation of State 6/20/2015 
Employee Grievance 

7/14 /2014 Act , Intentional 
Infliction of Emotional 
Distress 

I I 
15 Failure to Promote 6/6/2016 

I 

7/16/2014 Under Title VII (sex 
discrimination) 

- -
16 

I 
Declaratory Judgement 7/6/2016 

9/9/2014 (property) 

I 
17 Wrongful Death, 6/28/2017 

2/4/2016 Survival Action 
(MVA) 

18 Malicious Prosecution, 9/25/2017 
Assault & Battery, 

12/12/2016 
False Imprisonment, 
Defamation, 
Unconstitutional 
Taking 

19 Wrongful Death 
1/18/2017 (MVA) pending 

I 
20 Failure to Promote 

2/9/2017 
under Title VII, 

pendingDiscrimination in 
Violation ADEA 

I 
21 

4/27/2017 Negligence(MVA) pending 

22 Appeal for Probate 
8/16/2017 Matter pending 

I 
23 1/9/2018 Negligence(MVA) pending 

* This list is, to the best of our knowledge, a list of all lawsuits filed or pending against the 
agency for fiscal years 2007-2017, and is current as of 1/12/2018 . This does not include 
Administrative Law Court Cases, or Worker's Compensation Cases. 

Page 25 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



The Honorable Edward R. Tallon Sr. , Chairman 
Legislative Oversight Committee Subcommittee 
January 12,2018 
Page S of S 

We greatly appreciate your guidance and direction during our oversight process. Thank 
you for your comments and suggestions in helping our agency improve to provide exceptional 
outdoor experiences for the citizens of South Carolina. 

Director 

Attachments 

cc:	 The Honorable Wm. Weston 1. Newton (without attachments) 
The Honorable Katherine E. "Katie" Arrington (without attachments) 
The Honorable William M. "Bill" Hixon (without attachments) 
The Honorable Jeffrey E. "Jeff' Johnson (without attachments) 

Page 26 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



STATE VEHICLES - STATE FLEET MANAGEMENT 
POLICIES 

 
 

Department of Administration  
Office of General Services State Fleet Management Section Policy Directives 
http://www.admin.sc.gov/files/Fleet%20Management%20Policy%20Directives.pdf 

 
All state fleet management provisions are provided in the meeting packet.  Provisions of particular 

interest may include:  
Provision 1-4. Assignment and Use 

Provision 3-5.  Accident Reporting and Review Procedures 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 27 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018

http://www.admin.sc.gov/files/Fleet%20Management%20Policy%20Directives.pdf


Page 28 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 29 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 30 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 31 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 32 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 33 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 34 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 35 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 36 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 37 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 38 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 39 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 40 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 41 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 42 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



STATE VEHICLES - DNR DIRECTIVES AND POLICIES 
 

Note, only certain Department of Natural Resource policies are included in this meeting packet.  
A complete list of DNR policies related to this topic which are available on the Committee’s 
webpage are as follows: 

• Obtaining a vehicle 
o Vehicle procurement, assignment, use, maintenance and repair (Law 

Enforcement Directive 331) 
o Permanent Assignment of State Owned Vehicle (SFM Form 980-R) 

• Logs 
o Instructions for Monthly Motor Vehicle Log 
o Monthly Motor Vehicle Log 
o Daily Vehicle Log 
o Computation for Reimbursement of Commuting Mileage form 

• Travel Request Forms 
o Travel Regulations (Board Directive 201) 
o In-State Overnight Travel Request form 
o Out-of-State Travel Request form 

• Outside Work Use 
o Outside Working Activity (Consulting, Moonlighting, etc.) (Human Resources 

Policy 700.04) 
o Request for Approval of Outside Employment form 

• Collisions/Accidents 
o Law Enforcement Vehicle Collision form 
o Law Enforcement Collision Review and applicable forms (Law Enforcement 

Directive 301) 
o Investigation of vehicle accident memorandum 
o Agency vessel accidents and incidents (Law Enforcement Directive 327) 
o Reportable Boat Incident and Accident Investigations (Law Enforcement Directive 

344) 
o Operator Report of Accident and Incident form 
o Fleet Safety Program - Appendix B - Driver Corrective Actions 

• Other state vehicle policies 
o Vehicle Management Handbook 
o Equipment Use and Care (Board Directive 202) 
o Use of the Personal Flotation Device (PFD) while on board DNR Vessels and 

Boating Safety and Training (Board Directive 903) 
o Boat Operations and Training Program (Law Enforcement Directive 337) 
o Vehicular Pursuit (Board Policy 302.01) 
o Transportation of prisoners (Law Enforcement Directive 304) 
o Fleet Management Policy Directives 
o Motor Vehicle Management Act 

Page 43 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



DNR Board Directive 202.  Equipment Use and Care  
(last revised July 1, 2004) 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 44 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 45 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 46 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 47 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 48 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 49 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Law Enforcement Directive 301.  Law Enforcement Collision Review  
(last revised September 1, 2011) 

 
  

Page 50 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 51 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 52 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 53 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 54 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 55 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 56 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Daily and Monthly Vehicle Log 
 
Documents included in this section are as follows: 
• Daily vehicle log 
• Monthly Vehicle log 
• Instructions for Monthly motor vehicle log 
 
 
 
  

Page 57 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 58 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 59 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 60 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



IN-SERVICE TRAINING AND FIREARMS - DNR 
DIRECTIVES AND POLICIES 

 
Note, only certain Department of Natural Resource policies are included in this meeting packet.  
A complete list of DNR policies related to this topic which are available on the Committee’s 
webpage are as follows: 
 

• Firearm training and/or qualification 
o Training (Law Enforcement Directive 317) 
o Deputy Law Enforcement Officer Policy (Board Policy 300.01) 
o Use of Force (Board Policy 301.01) 
o Issuance of Law Enforcement Commissions to Department Personnel (Board 

Directive 301) 
o Request for Approval of Off Duty or Back-Up Weapon form 

 
  

Page 61 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



DNR Board Policy 300.01.  Deputy Law Enforcement Officer Policy 
 
  

Page 62 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 63 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 64 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 65 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 66 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 67 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 68 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 69 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 70 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 71 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Committee recommendation from Study of the Law Enforcement Training 
Council and Criminal Justice Academy regarding tracking firearm 

certification 
 

Page 72 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



 
 
 

Page 73 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



DISCIPLINE AND INTERNAL AFFAIRS - DNR 
DIRECTIVES AND POLICIES 

 
Note, only certain Department of Natural Resource policies are included in this meeting packet.  
A complete list of DNR policies related to this topic which are available on the Committee’s 
webpage are as follows: 
 

• Discipline and Internal Affairs 
o Standards of Disciplinary Actions (Human Resources Policy 701.03) 
o Oral Reprimand form 
o Written Reprimand form 
o Notice of Suspension form 
o Notice of Suspension Temporary Grant or Time-Limited Employees form 
o Notice of Suspension Pending Investigation form 
o Internal Affairs (Law Enforcement Directive 321) 
o Complaint Procedure (Board Policy 2016.01) 

 New procedure the SCDNR Board passed in January 2018 per the 
Oversight Subcommittee’s recommendation, which relates to complaint 
procedures for alleged wrongdoing of Deputy Directors, direct reports to 
the agency Director, the agency Director, and DNR Board Members and 
Advisory Board members. 

 
  

Page 74 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



New Complaint Procedure (Board Policy 2016.01) 
  

Page 75 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 76 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 77 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 78 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 79 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



 
Internal Affairs (Law Enforcement Directive 321) 

(Last revised September 1, 2011) 
 
 
  

Page 80 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 
LAW ENFORCEMENT DIVISION DIRECTIVE 

DIRECTIVE #: D 321 PAGE I OF 4 

SUBJECT: COMPLAINT PROCEDURE, fNTERNAL AFFAIRS DATE: NOV 21 , 1997 

RELATED DIRECTIVES, ST ANDA RDS. ETC. : LAST REVISION: SEP 1, 2011 

RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY: DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF LAW ENFORCEMENT 

THE LANGUAGE USED IN THIS DOCUMENT DOES NOT CREATE AN 
EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT BETWEEN THE EMPLOYEE AND THE AGENCY. 
THIS DOCUMENT DOES NOT CREATE ANY CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS OR 
ENTITLEMENTS. THE AGENCY RESERVES THE RIGHT TO REVISE THE 
CONTENT OF THIS DOCUMENT, IN WHOLE OR IN PART. NO PROMISES OR 
ASSURANCES, WHETHER WRITTEN OR ORAL, WHICH ARE CONTRARY TO OR 
INCONSISTANT WITH THE TERMS OF THIS PARAGRAPH CREATE ANY 
CONTRACT OF EMPLOYMENT. 

PURPOSE: The purpose of this directive is to establish guidelines and procedures for receiving, 
reporting, investigating, and adjudicating allegations of officer misconduct. 

DIRECTIVE: It is essential that the Division's personnel and the citizens of this state have 
confidence in these who exercise law enforcement authority. This requires procedures for 
adequate and expeditious processing of allegations of misconduct by employees. 

All employees will comply with agency rules, regulations and directives. All employees will be 
held strictly accountable for properly exercising the authority they have been given. At the same 
time, employees must be protected against false allegations of misconduct. This can only be 
accomplished through a consistently thorough investigative process. 

PROCEDURES: 
A. Internal Affairs Function 

1) The Deputy Director of Law Enforcement is responsible for the administration of internal 
affairs function. An lnternal Affairs Officer {IAO) will assist the Deputy Director for 
Law Enforcement with this responsibility, by: 
(a) Receiving, documenting, and maintaining files on all information pertaining to 

allegations of employee misconduct. These files will be maintained in a secure area 
separate from the personnel and other records. 

(b) Conducting, supervising or coordinating the investigation of alleged or suspected 
misconduct within the Law Enforcement Division or within other Divisions upon 
authorization from the Director. 

(c) Maintaining the confidentiality of all internal affairs investigations and records to the 
maximum extent allowed by law. 

Page 81 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



2) Appropriate logs for complaints will be maintained by both the IAO and each Region 
Captain or section head. 

B. Categories of co·mplaint 
1) Low Infraction-Allegations that involve: 

(a) Misunderstandings between a citizen and an employee. 
(b) Breaches of policies or directives of less serious nature. 

2) High Infraction 
(a) All allegations brought against an employee of a criminal nature or serious enough to 

warrant personnel action such as suspension or termination. Allegations of felonious 
conduct may be reported to SLED or other appropriate law enforcement authority. 

C. Procedure for Accepting Allegations Against Agency Members 
1) Any citizen complaint, regardless of category, shall be accepted whether it is in person, 

by phone, or in writing, and an appropriate investigation conducted. Irrational complaints 
and complainants who exhibit behavior generally associated with some form of dementia 
or substance abuse may be noted. 

2) An employee who received an initial complaint shall direct the complaint or written 
complaint to the affected Region Captain or Deputy Director for Law Enforcement. 

IMPORT ANT: othing contained herein should be constructed so as to prevent any person 
with information about misconduct from going directly to the Deputy Director for Law 
Enforcement. 

D. High Infraction 
1) In all high infractions, the Deputy Director for Law Enforcement will be notified in a 

timely manner of the allegation. In addition the agency will acknowledge receipt of the 
complaint in the appropriate manner. 

E. Assignment of the Investigation 
Allegations of a high infraction shall be assigned for investigations in the following manner: 
1) The Deputy Director for Law Enforcement shall assign a supervisor to investigate the 

allegation as soon as possible or refer the matter to the IAO or another investigative 
agency if he feels it is warranted. 

F. Notification to Officers of Internal Affairs Investigation 
1) The Employee of an internal affairs investigation will be informed of any allegations 

usually from the affected Captain, provided that investigations conducted by external 
authorities may control when the officer is informed. 

G. Responsibilities of Employee 
1) Employees will cooperate fully with any internal investigation. Employees are expected 

to answer questions specifically and narrowly related to the subject of the investigation 
and may be compelled to answer questions relating to non-criminal conduct or criminal 
conduct which will not be prosecuted. 

H. Polygraph Examinations 
l) The polygraph may be used in any matter for detection of deception, provided no 

employee shall be required to submit to examination except with the expressed approval 
of the Deputy Director for Law Enforcement or Director. Any ordered examination must 
be in accordance with the "Garrity" decision of the United States Supreme Court. Refusal 

2 

Page 82 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



to submit to such examination may result in disciplinary action in accordance to the 
Standards of Disciplinary Action Policy #701.03. 

I. Further Testing or Disclosures 
I) The Deputy Director for Law Enforcement or Director may require an employee in any 

matter to submit to any following test or disclosure when specifically directed and 
narrowly related to the subject of an internal investigation. Failure to follow a direct order 
of this nature may result in disciplinary action against an employee in accordance to the 
Standards of Disciplinary Action, Policy #701.03. 

J. Employee Rights 
l) Employees have the same rights guaranteed to all citizens by the Constitution and laws of 

the State of South Carolina and of the United States. 
2) For high infractions, internal investigations will be completed within 180 days from the 

start of initial complaint. If an extension is necessary, the assigned investigator will 
request an extension from the Deputy Director for Law Enforcement or Director citing 
the extenuating circumstances. Throughout the investigation the assigned investigator 
will keep the Deputy Director for Law Enforcement or the Director informed. 

3) Employees have the right 
(a) to be treated fairly , 
(b) to be informed of allegations, 
(c) to have complaints investigated, and 
(d) to be afforded an opportunity to present evidence on their behalf. 

K. Adjudication of Allegation of Employee Misconduct 
I) For high infractions, internal investigations will be completed within 180 days from the 

start of initial complaint. If an extension is necessary, the assigned investigator will 
request an extension from the Deputy Director for Law Enforcement or Director citing 
the extenuating circumstances. Throughout the investigation the assigned investigator 
will keep the Deputy Director for Law Enforcement or the Director informed. 

2) For low infractions, internal investigations will be completed within 180 days from the 
start of the initial complaint. If an extension is necessary, the assigned investigator will 
request an extension from the Deputy Director for Law Enforcement or the Director or 
respective Captain citing the extenuating circumstances. Throughout the investigation, 
the assigned investigator will keep the Deputy Director for Law Enforcement or Director 
or affected Captain informed. 

3) Upon conclusion of an investigation the investigator will forward all information to the 
Deputy Director for Law Enforcement or Director or other senior staff members, or 
affected Captain. 

4) The Deputy Director for Law Enforcement or Director or effected Captain shall review 
the facts and determine whether the complaint should be classified as: 
(a) Unfounded-Evidence sufficient to conclude that the complaint is groundless. 
(b) Exonerated-Actions taken by employee were lawful and proper. 
(c) Not sustained-Insufficient evidence exists to either prove or disprove the complaint. 
(d) Sustained-Sufficient evidence exists to conclude the allegation is correct. 

5) If the allegation is sustained based on the facts of the investigation, the Deputy Director 
of Law Enforcement, Director, senior staff member or affected Captain wil 1 take 
appropriate disciplinary action in accordance with Standards of Disciplinary Action 

3 

Page 83 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Policy after consultation with the office of Human Resources. 
6) Complainants will be informed at the conclusion or resolution of an investigation. 

NOTE: In all investigations where the complaint is classified as "Unfounded", 
"Exonerated" or "Not Sustained" the employee will be notified in writing that the 
investigation has been closed and how the investigation was classified. 

K. Criminal Prosecution Liaison 
I) In the event of any criminal prosecution resulting from an investigation of alleged officer 

misconduct, the Deputy Director for Law Enforcement or his designee will maintain 
communication with the appropriate investigating agency and or prosecutor. 

L. Notification of High Authority 
l) The Deputy Director for Law Enforcement periodically will apprise the Director of all 

internal investigations and will promptly inform the Director of all serious allegations 
made against DNR officers. 

APPROVED: 

A.C. Frampton, Colonel 

4 

Page 84 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Standards of Disciplinary Actions (Human Resources Policy 701.03) 
(Last revised July 1, 2004)

Page 85 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018

http://www.scstatehouse.gov/CommitteeInfo/HouseLegislativeOversightCommittee/AgencyWebpages/DNR/Standards%20of%20Disciplinary%20Actions%20(Policy%20701.03).pdf


Page 86 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 87 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 88 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 89 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 90 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 91 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 92 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 93 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 94 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 95 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



HIRING, PROMOTIONS, AND BONUSES - DNR 
DIRECTIVES AND POLICIES 

 
Note, only certain Department of Natural Resource policies are included in this meeting packet.  
A complete list of DNR policies related to this topic which are available on the Committee’s 
webpage are as follows: 
 

• Hiring/Promotions 
o Law Enforcement Officer Hiring Procedure (Law Enforcement Directive 347) 
o Law Enforcement Officer Promotional Plan (Law Enforcement Directive 348) 
o Law Enforcement Officer Career Path 
o Marine Resources Division Pay Plan 
o Wildlife and Freshwater Fisheries Division Pay Plan 
o Boat Titling and Registration Clerks Career Path 
o Applicant Evaluation Form 

 
  

Page 96 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Law Enforcement Officer Hiring Procedure (LE Directive 347) 
(Last revised March 1, 2001)

Page 97 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 98 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 99 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 100 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 101 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



 
Law Enforcement Officer Promotional Plan (LE Directive 348) 

(Last revised July 2, 2012)

Page 102 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 103 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 104 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



 
Applicant Evaluation Form 

 
 

Page 105 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



Page 106 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



COMMITTEE CONTACT INFORMATION 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 107 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



 
 
 
 
 

Page 108 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018



 

Page 109 of 109 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

February 12, 2018


	Agenda
	Meeting Minutes
	Study Timeline
	January 12, 2018 DNR letter to Subcommittee
	LE Officer turnover trends

	State Vehicles - State Fleet Management Policies
	1-4. Assignment and Use
	3-5. Accident Reporting and Review Procedures
	Driver Corrective Actions

	State Vehicles - DNR Directives and Policies
	DNR Board Directive 202.  Equipment Use and Care
	Law Enforcement Directive 301.  Law Enforcement Collision Review
	Daily and Monthly Vehicle Log

	In-Service Training and Firearms - DNR Directives and Policies
	DNR Board Policy 300.01.  Deputy Law Enforcement Officer Policy
	Committee recommendation from Study of the Law Enforcement Training Council and Criminal Justice Academy regarding tracking firearm certification

	Discipline and Internal Affairs - DNR Directives and Policies
	New Complaint Procedure (Board Policy 2016.01)
	Internal Affairs (Law Enforcement Directive 321)
	Standards of Disciplinary Actions (Human Resources Policy 701.03)

	Hiring, Promotions, and Bonuses - DNR Directives and Policies
	Law Enforcement Officer Hiring Procedure (LE Directive 347)
	Law Enforcement Officer Promotional Plan (LE Directive 348)
	Applicant Evaluation Form

	Committee Contact Information



